	State of Nevada
	


	Brian Sandoval

	Department of Administration
	
	Governor

	Purchasing Division
	
	

	515 E. Musser Street, Suite 300
	
	Jeffrey Haag

	Carson City, NV  89701
	
	Administrator
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	CONTACT:
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The following shall be a part of RFP 3223.  If a vendor has already returned a proposal and any of the information provided below changes that proposal, please submit the changes along with this amendment.  You need not re-submit an entire proposal prior to the opening date and time.


1. Are you expecting to award only to an advertising agency who can buy as well as create the messaging, or will you accept bids from the media companies themselves if we can assist in creating messaging that is both traditional and online in a specific region, and meet the reporting requirements?

The State is specifically looking for a media company.  An agency is already contracted for help on messaging, and now would like to buy some media directly.

2.	As referenced in 3.1.1, where do we find background information on the Nevada Department of 	Wildlife’s angler and/or hunter marketing plans, including outreach strategies and program 	activity? Is that available before the due date or only to the winning vendors?

For the moment, the State is seeking media companies offering numerous outlets to reach the desired audience. The future direction of this project will be discussed with the awarded vendor(s).

3.	Is there a set budget?

No.  The budget amounts are targets.  Many individual projects that begin at 5K overall,  ranging in tens of thousands of dollars each year.  They also vary based on geography.  Locations and timing of agency needs will be determined through discussions with the awarded vendor(s). 

4.	What is the proposed budget for this contract?

	Refer to question 3 of this amendment.

5.	Does any part of said budget need to be spent in specific ways; ie. x amount to media, x amount 	to DBEs, etc?

The State is open to any and all proposals for media versus other types of services.  The State intends to work with successful vendors to create smart partnerships based on State needs and the vendors’ expertise.

6.	Are outside ad agencies who are able to build packages from multiple stations and media firms 	but do not own stations eligible to bid? (Referenced in section 3.3.1)

No.

7.	What is the estimated annual budget?

	Refer to question 3 of this amendment.

8.	Section 3.3 Are you looking for a media buying agency or a radio station/multi-media 	company?

The State is not seeking a media agency; only multimedia/radio station groups are sought. 

9.	Can you provide annual media budgets for the past 3 years? If so, can you provide the media 	mix allocation by channel for each year?

Because of multiple projects, numbers cannot be broken down per channel.  The estimated yearly budget over the past three years is 70K per year, spent all over Nevada.  

10.	In Section 3/Scope of Work, 3.1.1 they reference that we should review background 	information from their marketing plans. Will they be providing that documentation for agencies 	selected to move to the next stage?

Additional information will be provided for further stages, if needed. 

11.	In Section 3/Scope of Work, 3.1.2 they mention radio, social, and online as part of the 	‘multimedia’ approach. What is their history with TV? Is it simply too expensive to produce 	and air?

The State believes television is too expensive to produce and air.  Radio and digital multimedia properties are specifically targeted by this RFP.

12.	In Section 3/Scope of Work, 3.3 Media Company-Specific Information, they request 	information about radio properties owned by the ‘vendor’. Are they also RFP’ing radio station 	groups in addition to agencies?

The State is specifically targeting radio station groups.  An agency is not desired at this time.

13.	Section 3.3 Media specific information. Based on this being in the RFP, do you want media 	companies to submit for this proposal and the NDOW will put together the media plan?

Yes.  Specific plans will be made in conjunction with the awarded vendor(s).
14.	Are you looking for a media buying firm or are you looking to radio stations to submit for this 	rfp?

 Refer to question 8 of this amendment.

15.	What is the annual budget?

	Refer to question 3 of this amendment.

16.	Will the campaign be targeted for rural as well as metro?

The State intends to target rural areas all over Nevada.  Rural vendors and stations are encouraged to respond.

17.	Are there any grant-based monies as part of this campaign – if so are there any special criteria 	or restrictions that need to be followed?

There is grant money, but the needs and requirements of grant reports will be handled by NDOW.  Radio station groups should not be impacted.

18.	Will the winning agency be addressing any issue such as: bears, urban trapping, sage grouse 	habitat, quagga mussel, milfoil etc?

Yes, the winning radio or media group will be handling all these issues and many more. 

19.	What is the annual budget?

	Refer to question 3 of this amendment.

20.	The RFP states that NDOW is looking for “Radio” or multimedia companies etc. Does NDOW 	indeed want to work with a radio station group or an advertising agency that procures and 	provides creative, production and placement?

Refer to question 8 of this amendment.

21.	It seems that this RFP is for media procurement and added value but not creative development 	and production, is this correct?

NDOW can and does develop its own creative.  Some ad production assistance is expected from successful vendors, but the majority of creative will be handled i- house.  Vendors with special or noteworthy creative abilities/services are encouraged to include those in their proposal and response.
 
22.	What agency most recently provided media buying services for the NDOW?

	Refer to question 3 of this amendment.

23.	What years did the agency represent the NDOW?

NDOW still maintains agency representation, but is looking at doing some direct ad buys with media companies. 

24.	What is the annual advertising budget for the NDOW?

	Refer to question 3 of this amendment.

25.	What is the mix of media that has been bought by the NDOW?  Radio?  TV?  Print?  Digital? Social media?

NDOW buys 75 percent radio with the rest as a mix between digital/ outdoor advertising, and   almost no television.

26.	What is the percentage breakdown of each type of media:  Radio?  TV?  Print?  Digital?  Social media?

Refer to question 26 of this amendment.

27.	What is your maximum advertising spend?

Refer to question 3 of this amendment.

28.	Is there a specific time frame you do not desire to advertise?

NDOW has several projects during the year, for example, hunting season and summer boating season.  These projects are mostly the same year to year, but there are many unexpected issues that require an ad buy.

29.	Can you provide a past media schedule?

NDOW schedules can change dramatically with no set schedule, but the agency is open and happy to look at schedules proposed to reach key demographics. 

30.	What is your marketing expectation?

NDOW advertises for social marketing to entice people to boat safely, and in some cases, to promote fishing or hunting license sales.  The agency looks to media partners to help identify certain outlets and strategies.   

31.	How do you measure marketing success?

Refer to question 31 of this amendment.

32.	What is the timing of the advertising buy?  Annual?  6 Month?  3 Month?   Seasonal?

Seasonal, based on budget, current issues, and the need to reach the public.  

33.	What are you primary target markets?  Secondary markets? Age?  HHI?  Interests?

Primary markets include boaters, hunters, and anglers.  Although NDOW tends to target middle-aged men, between 30 and 50, because they have the most boating accidents, the agency is open to interpreting and reinterpreting these demographics. 

34.	What do they look like? Ex: Affinity to drink coffee, smoke cigars, where overalls. etc. 

The demographic tends to be older, outdoors-oriented people.  

35.	What is the geographic market?  Rural areas or urban?  Both?

	Refer to question 8 of this amendment.

36.	Is the media buy of a national scale?  Local scale?  Regional scale?

This project is of statewide scale.  NDOW is seeking proposals from numerous media companies to ensure that all of Nevada’s vast geography is covered.  

37.	Clear definition of your target market?

This is a very hard question.  NDOW has no single target market, but targets different kinds of people, depending on the message and program.  For instance, the boating audience is much different from hunters and bird watchers.  The agency will look for advice and assistance identifying different markets moving forward. 

38.	What is the direction for creative? 

NDOW has large, capable, creative team.  The agency will need some assistance for production, but most creative is done in-house.  

39.	What are the key messages you want consumers to know?

Boat safe, buy a fishing license, go hunting, protect wildlife resources, report wildlife crime, with many other messages in rotation.  NDOW creates the messages based on seasonal projects, but needs help getting them out to the public. 

 40.	Are there upcoming promotions?  Upcoming events?  Partnerships? 

Current and upcoming plans include promotions with marinas, boat dealerships, and some sporting goods businesses.  NDOW is always looking for new and expanded partnerships.  Also, we have standard events, like National Safe Boating week in May, Bat Week in the fall, and other annual milestones we try to hit every year.  

ALL ELSE REMAINS THE SAME FOR RFP 3223.

Vendor must sign and return this amendment with proposal submitted.

	Vendor Name:
	

	Authorized Signature:
	

	Title:
	
	Date:
	



	This document must be submitted in the “State Documents” section/tab of vendors’ technical proposal.
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